

Papendorf Software Engineering GmbH

User Manual

SOL.Connect Center III



Imprint:

Contact: Papendorf Software Engineering GmbH Robert-Bosch-Str. 10 71116 Gärtringen, Germany Phone: +49 (0)7034 27910 - 0 Fax: +49 (0)7034 27910 - 11

www.papendorf-se.de

E-Mail: <u>info@papendorf-se.de</u>

Issue: 3.0 - Date: 14.03.2014

Please keep this manual in a safe place for future reference!

Printed in Germany, © Papendorf Software Engineering GmbH The use and / or reprint of the contents or extracts hereof is permitted only with written permission of the author and editor.

All rights reserved, including changes in the context of further development!

Contents

1	Pre	Preface				
	1.1	Symbols7				
2	Sec	Security Warnings				
3	Pro	duct Description10				
	3.1	System Prerequisites				
	3.2	Intended Use12				
	3.3	Scope of Delivery12				
	3.4	Accessories				
		3.4.1 SOL.Connect MultiScan				
		3.4.2 SOL Connect Power Manager 15				
		3 4 3 SOL Connect Portal				
		2.4.4 Casing				
	3.4.4 Casing					
	_	3.4.6 Network Cable				
4	Tec	chnical Description				
	4.1	Connections (Front Side)17				
		4.1.1 Wiring of Terminal Strip18				
	4.2	Connections (Back Side) 19				
	4.3	Signals and Operating Display at the Device				
		4.3.1 LED Bar on the top side				
		4.3.2 LED on the plus assembly20				
		4.3.3 Acoustic Signals				
	4.4	The Compact Flash [®] Memory Card21				
	4.5	Software Updates21				
	4.6	Warranty / Liability				



	4.7	Large-scale Display / Display	
5	Ope	eration	23
	5.1	Network	23
		5.1.1 LAN Interface	23
		5.1.3 Connecting further SOL.Connect Devices	
		5.1.4 Connecting a large-scale display	
		5.1.5 Connect a Signalling Contact	29
		5.1.6 Connection of Power Supply	29
		5.1.7 Turning on the Device	
	5.2	PV-plant	
6	Ass	sembly	
7	Wo	rking with the SOL.Connect Center	
	7.1	User Rights, Access Rights	
	7.1	Registration	
	7.2	Overview / Tables and Diagram Functions	
		7.2.1 Working with the Submenu	
		7.2.2 Table of Events	37
		7.2.3 Diagram analysis	
	7.3	The Welcome Screen	40
	7.4	Plant Status	
	7.5	Monitoring	45
		7.5.1 Triggering an alarm by an alarm contact	47
	7.6	Analysis	
	7.7	Configuration (on administrator level)	50
		7.7.1 Core System	51
		7.7.2 Communication	70
		7.7.3 PV plant	



		7.7.4 Security
	7.8	Download98
		7.8.1 Plant Data98
	8.1	Allocate Messaging to a Recipient 103
	8.2	Monitoring 105
	8.3	Reports
9	XMI	Upload by the SOL.Connect Center 110
	9.1	Structure of the XML File 110
1(C	Disposal
1 [.]	1	Technical Data
1:	2	Description of Symbols 118
	12.1	General118
	12.2	Network Search
	12.3	Status Display
	12.4	Messaging
	12.5	Solar Feed-in Tariff119
	12.6	Plant Status
1:	3	Description of Conformity121
14	4	Illustration Index 123



1 Preface

In this manual you will find detailed product information and instructions how to use the **SOL.Connect Center**.

In the following text the SOL.Connect Center is called **data logger** for the purpose of better readability.

The SOL.Connect Center is available in a standard version as well in connection with optionally available SOL.Connect products for enhanced features. The configurations of these products are only visible on the web surface after connecting them. Therefore these are marked herein as **optional**.

This document incorporates the latest version at the time of printing. It is subject to changes which refer to new functionalities and enhancements.

The names of actual products and companies mentioned herein may be the trademarks of their respective owner. Techniques and assemblies described herein are partly patented.



1.1 Symbols

Throughout the manual important information is being highlighted with various symbols:



Note

This symbol points to circumstances that need special attention and, if not followed, may lead to damage of components or even hazards to people. Information marked as "Note" must be observed on all accounts.



Information

The symbol "Information" points to additional information and hints for the user regarding enhancement of the operating procedures.



2 Security Warnings

It is assumed that the reader is aware of the common rules and provisions regarding electrical installations and connection to the public power grid. Especially the common safety regulations for working on electric installations must be observed closely.

Please pay attention to the following safety instructions to avoid bodily injuries and hazards of the connected devices:



Touching electrical parts could result in death or serious injury even after the equipment has been completely disconnected from the mains! **Only install this device while completely disconnected**!



Devices must only be operated in a dry, protected environment. With optional accessories an IP65 installation is possible.



Do not try to enter into the inside of the device by using a metallic, pointed or sharp tool.



Avoid exposed cables and connections.



Electric supply must have a fuse and protecting earthing.



The main plug must be accessible at all times.



Maintenance work may only be carried out by qualified personnel.





Touching electrical parts could result in death or serious injury even after the equipment has been completely disconnected from the mains! Only install this device while completely disconnected!



Devices can only be operated in a dry, protected environment. With optional accessories an IP65 installation is possible.



Do not try to enter into the inside of the device by using a metallic, pointed or sharp tool.



3 Product Description

The data logger is a freely programmable system to collect, reprocess, validate, and submit plant information and it's design is based on longterm experiences.

It is specifically designed for the process monitoring of regenerative energy plants. The system incorporates the following features:

- Retrieval of data, detailed storage and permanent monitoring of data from inverters
- Recording of up to 50 inverters (depending on the respective model) in 10-minute intervals
- Monitoring of large-scale plants of up to 500 inverters from various brands (installing a master control system)
- Tracking of yield / performance / errors (monitoring)
- Individual administration of inverters arranged in groups
- Alarm triggering functions at certain events via e-mail and fault signalling (configurable)
- Internal reporting and charting for display and automatic distribution via e-mail, HTTP (internet)
- Display of the on-going plant status (momentary values of the plant under surveillance)
- Download of measurement data out of the internal data memory for further processing
- Dynamic language selection for the users



A significant advantage of this data logger system is that the intelligence is within the device and therefore within the plant itself. This creates the basis for an independent monitoring onsite.

The following illustration shows and overview about the systems components:



Illustration 3-1 System Overview Standard Version



3.1 System Prerequisites

For the use with SOL.Connect Center the following web browsers are recommended:

Internet Explorer[®] From version 8

Firefox[®] From version 3

3.2 Intended Use

The SOL.Connect Center is to be used exclusively for data analysis of inverter data. Information about supported types of inverters is available from the manufacturer.

Drilling holes into the case or any other mechanical modifications lead to damages and will render the warranty invalid!

3.3 Scope of Delivery

The scope of delivery contains:

- SOL.Connect Center
- Terminator plug for inverter bus RS485
- 1 GB Compact Flash[®] memory card (already installed within the device)
- Plug-in power supply: cable length: 1m

Input: 100 - 240VAC

Output: 12V, 2A, 75 x 43 x 34 mm (Preinstalled on terminal strip)

• "Cross link cable" Ethernet PC-connection cable (2m)



- Inverter breakout cable (approx. 5m)
- Installation kit: adapter, cap rail clamp, screw set (3 screws and plastic screw anchors) for mounting of the device
- User manual, connection diagram inverter to SOL.Connect Center

3.4 Accessories

3.4.1 SOL.Connect MultiScan

AD-converter module to connect transducer, sensors, counter, and transmitter.

The SOL.Connect MultiScan (sensor module) captures data from the following sensors:



- Irradiation sensor: 0-150mV, mono-, poly-crystalline or amorphous, with or without measuring of temperature
- Module temperature sensor and ambient

temperature sensor: PT1000

- Impulse transmitter: digital input, passive 12 -V ... 24 V
- Transducer for performance recording: 0-20 mA output proportional to the performance

Information

The sensor module must only be installed in connection with the respective sensors from sensor kits. The use of other sensors might put the functionality of the system at risk.



3.4.1.1 Sensor Kits

A sensor kit contains an irradiation sensor, module temperature sensor and ambient temperature sensor.

Variant Sensor Kit "Light"



- SI-SENSOR[®]^{*}: Mono-crystalline silicon; linearity of the electronic circuit: $\pm 0,3 \%$ v. M. for 50 to 1300 W/m²; deviation at 25°C: $\pm 1,5$ °C; non-linearity: $\pm 0,5$ °C; deviation at minimal and maximal temperature: $\pm 2,0$ C
- SOL.Connect Sensor T: PT 1000, measure-

ment range from -35°C to +105°C; sensor element: tolerance class B; exactness: \pm 0,5 %^{*}

• Ambient temperature sensor: PT 1000; platinum resistor; exactness: \pm 0,5 $\%^{*1}$

Variant Sensor Kit "Pro"



- ISET Sensor*: Mono-, poly-crystalline, amorphous, calibrated by Fraunhofer IWES; with integrated temperature measuring; measurement range: 0 to 1300 W/m²; exactness: ± 4 %* crystalline; ±5 % amorphous*
- SOL.Connect Sensor T: PT 1000, measurement range from -35°C to +105°C; sensor element: tolerance class B; exactness: ± 0,5 %^{*1}

^{*1} with a max. cable length of 3m



^{*} Excerpt from manufacturer's information

• Ambient temperature sensor: PT 1000; platinum resistor; exactness: \pm 0,5 $\%^{\star}$

3.4.2 SOL.Connect Power Manager



For power limitation in accordance with EEG amendment 2012: Operators of photovoltaic installations with a nominal capacity of more than 100 kWp must install a remotely controllable power limitation until mid of 2012 – this refers also to existing plants!

For PV Anlagen between 30kWp and 100kWp, which have been set into operation after 01.01.2009, retrofitting is mandatory until the end of 2013.

3.4.3 SOL.Connect Portal

Internet Portal with public and private access areas

- Presenting the plants
- Graphic analysis
- Publication and comparison of plant characteristics
- Backup of log and configuration data
- Service interface for technical firm, supplier, manufacturer

Information on accessories is available at Papendorf Software Engineering GmbH, <u>www.papendorf-se.de</u> or by phone.



3.4.4 Casing

• Protection class IP65 with respective additional casing for outdoor use

3.4.5 Modem

- Analogue: DEVELO Microlink 56k i
- ISDN: DEVELO Microlink ISDN i
- GSM: Siemens MC35i Terminal

3.4.6 Network Cable

• Commercially available RJ45 TP10/100 network cable



4 Technical Description

4.1 Connections (Front Side)

On the front side the data logger has the following connections available:



Illustration 4-1 SOL.Connect Center Front Side

- Terminal strip for power supply, field bus EasyLan, data interface RS232 or RS485, 1x relay output for fault alarm contact and 1x isolated input
- 2 Serial interface to connect a modem
- **3** 3 LEDs for operating mode display (red, yellow, green)
- **4** Dial-out switch for control of internet dial-up as well as a function switch (Func 1)
- 5 Ethernet interface for LAN
- 6 Data interface RS485 RJ45 twin socket for inverter connection



The function select switch may be connected to the relays output, see chapter 7.7.1.6.



	PIN	Function	Description
Shield	Shield	Shielding	Shielding of cable
GND	GND	Power supply	
12-24V	12-24V		
EasyLan	EasyLan	EasyLan-Bus	Field bus, to connect sensor
GND _	GND	5	modules
n/a -	-		
B RS	В	(COM2) RS485 inter-	Optional interface
A 85	А	face	
GND	GND		
= In +	IN+	Isolated input	To connect a fault sensor (e.g.
ln -	IN-		fuse)
= Out +	Out+		Output of a message (contact
Out	Out1-	κειαγ ουτρυτ	reactivate a fuse)

4.1.1 Wiring of Terminal Strip



4.2 Connections (Back Side)



Illustration 4-2 SOL.Connect Center Back Side

7 USB interface

4.3 Signals and Operating Display at the Device

4.3.1 LED Bar on the top side

When turning on the data logger all status LEDs light up briefly in order to perform a functional check of the LED-bar.



LED		Description
6	Indicator lamp flashes.	System is working.
1 to 6 On-going performance The calculation		The calculation of the total performance
	total (min. 1 to max. 6)	shown by the LED-Bar is based on the
		max. feed-in value of the inverters
		(=100% divided by the number of
		LEDs).



LED		Description	
		Information During the start-up phase the established performance is very low, therefore during this phase raised values may occur. To prevent this maximum feed-in performance may be determined for each single in- verter.	
7	Inverter malfunction	This LED flashes as soon as at least one of the programmed and active inverters is no longer available via the RS485 bus.	
8	General system mal- function	General malfunctions of the system	



Note

The "Dial-out" switch prevents / allows that the data logger may independently connect via the modem, (dial-out LED flashes). By connecting additional costs may occur.

LED on the plus assembly 4.3.2

OData Dial out Power

Yellow turned on: Serial/Modem communication is active Red turned on: Modem is able to independently build-up connections (internet dial-up)

Green turned on: power status, power supply is active



4.3.3 Acoustic Signals

The data logger only confirms the switch-on procedure with an acoustic signal. A further signal can be heard when starting the software. Further acoustic signals are only performed in cases of errors, similar to a PC.

4.4 The Compact Flash[®] Memory Card

In order to store data a Compact Flash[®] memory card is installed into the data logger. The data logger is only functional with an installed Compact Flash[®] memory card.

Note

The Compact Flash[®] memory card installed must only be exchanged by the manufacturer. Otherwise all warranty claims shall expire prematurely.

4.5 Software Updates

The software of the SOL.Connect Center is subject to constant enhancements; especially due to the constant advancements of the connected system components, most recent findings in the area of data evaluation, new demands from users and changes of PC operating systems.

Enhancements and correction of the software can be uploaded either automatically or via an alternate update server.



4.6 Warranty / Liability

All SOL.Connect components have a 2 year warranty. However excluded are data media, data, damages caused by overvoltage or other improper handling, damaging or external influences.

Drilling holes into the case or any other mechanical modifications lead to damages and will render the warranty invalid!

4.7 Large-scale Display / Display

The data logger supports the display of measurement data (performance, daily yield and total yield) at a large-scale display (RS485) operating with a HVG-based communication protocol. Because the HVG-protocol is limited to the display of a plant performance of < 100 kW, also an especially adapted HVG-based protocol may be selected.



5 Operation

5.1 Network

There are 2 possibilities to connect the data logger with a computer:

• A connection via the **LAN-interface** (chapter 5.1.1)

Or

Via remote access using a modem (Analogue/ISDN/GSM) (chapter 3.4.3)

5.1.1 LAN Interface

The data logger tries to automatically obtain an IP address from a DHCP server. If this is not successful within the first 2 minutes, an automatic TCP/IP addressing is being performed without DHCP server (Auto-IP).

The access to the data logger is possible via:

• **NetBIOS name:** enter the serial number of the data logger into browser's address field.

or

• **Bonjour**: the software "Bonjour" is freely available over the internet (it's already integrated on Apple PCs with Mac OS). Please note to select the correct version for your PC operating system!





Information

Should the installation as described above fail an IP address must be assigned to the data logger. This can be done via the network settings of your computer.



Information

It may take a few minutes until the SOL.Connect Center appears in the Windows Explorer (via UPNP).

5.1.1.1 Network Router

When using a network router some ports must be opened and released for certain services:

Service	Description	Port	Direction of re- lease
NTP	Timely synchronisation with external servers	123	Outbound
FTP	Data transfer e.g. into the SC Web Portal	20,21	Outbound
НТТР	Websites	80	Inbound
SMTP	e-mail transmission via an external Server	25, 587, 465 (provid- er specific)	Outbound
SNMP	Monitoring interfaces for	161, 162	Both directions



Service	Description	Port	Direction of re-
OPC	external software	8080	Inbound
SSH	Maintenance communica- tion	22	Inbound
Control Station Mode	Linkage with SOL.Connect Control Center – master control station network	9009	Both directions
Modbus IP	Communication protocol for communication with e.g. special measuring appli- ances	502	Both directions
MySQL	Direct data transfer into external data bases	3306	Outbound

5.1.2 Connection via Modem

In this case the operation of the data loggers is being performed by using eh modem interface.

While using the modem (serial interface, see 4.1) a connection between the PC and the data logger is being set up by phone:



- Start → control panel → network connections → create new connection
 - create connection with internet

iew Connection Wizard	
Network Connection Type What do you want to do?	Ð
Connect to the Internet	
Connect to the Internet so you can be	owse the Web and read email.
O Connect to the network at my w	orkplace
Connect to a business network (using a field office, or another location.	dial-up or VPN) so you can work from home,
○ Set up a home or small office no	etwork
Connect to an existing home or small	office network or set up a new one.
Set up an advanced connection	
Connect directly to another computer set up this computer so that other con	using your serial, parallel, or infrared port, or inputers can connect to it.
	(Back Next) Cancel

Illustration 5-1 Connect with the Internet

- Set up connection manually
- Set up connection with modem
- Select modem

Selecting a modem is not available when only one modem has been installed.



Illustration 5-2 Setting up Connection Manually



- Enter "Name"
- Enter "Phone number"
- Next → Username and password are not necessary!
- Finish connection
- The connection can now be selected

Connect Dia	al-up Connection
9	
User name: Password	
Save this	user name and password for the following users:
Djal:	
Dial	Cancel Prgperties Help

Illustration 5-3 Dial-up Connection

When using an ISDN-Modem together with a "normal modem" the driver for "modem emulation" must be installed on the side of the data logger.

Using an AVM Fritz[®] card (also for USB versions) this option must be installed afterwards from the AVM software CD (see "AVM ISDN analogue modem V32 BIS").

Enter <u>http://192.168.2.1</u> into the address field of a browser. The start screen of the data logger is being loaded.

Information

Because the system collects a big volume of data we recommend using a broadband connection together with a flat rate.



5.1.3 Connecting further SOL.Connect Devices

Details on how to connect and operate the optionally available SOL.Connect devices are indicated in the quick guides included in the respective scope of supply!

5.1.4 Connecting a large-scale display

5.1.4.1 Connecting a serial display (direct connection)

A serial display is connected directly to the data logger, following these steps:

 Connect the large-scale display with pin A and A at the data logger's terminator strip (A = data+; B = data-).

RO	A 07		A	Display
S O		Y	1000	(Display
M3	B 06	0-	8	Connection box

Illustration 5-4 Connecting Display

• Configure the display (see chapter 7.7.2.4)

The display receives data which are being displayed.

5.1.4.2 Connecting a remote display)

Via a serial Ethernet converter (RS485) a large-scale display which is available via the internet can also receive data (UDP-communication). Some network settings of the serial Ethernet converter within the data logger are necessary (see chapter 7.7.2.4).

Data logger \rightarrow network (internet) \rightarrow serial ethernet converter \rightarrow display





Information

Further information is provided in the display's manual.

5.1.5 Connect a Signalling Contact

You can connect an alarm contact, e.g. a signal light to the data logger.



Illustration 5-5 Connect Alarm Contact

Connect one contact with the relay output of the data logger (see connections, chapter 4.1).

5.1.6 Connection of Power Supply

The power supply plug is by default already connected to the terminal strip.



Please plug the terminal strip into the respective plug (see also chapter 4.1) and then the power supply plug into the wall socket.

Illustration 5-6 Connection Power Supply



Attention!

Touching the electrical parts might result in death or serious injury. The electrical connection must only be performed after installation of the hardware and all other cables has been finished!



5.1.7 Turning on the Device

After connecting up the power supply the SOL.Connect Center is taken into operation with approximately **60 seconds**.

When turning on the data logger all status LEDs light up briefly in order to perform a functional check of the LED-bar. Then the device is ready for use.

5.2 PV-plant

The initial operation of the monitoring components must be done onsite using a notebook to establish a direct connection with the SOL.Connect Center.

Step 1: Programming an inverter

Activate the automatic network search at *configuration* \rightarrow *solar plant* \rightarrow *inverter* \rightarrow *search*.



Illustration 5-7 First Steps – Searching Inverters

All detected inverters are displayed in an overview screen.



Note

Terminate the inverter bus additionally with the terminator included. A missing termination leads to inverters not being recognized by the system.

Various types of inverters are being terminated in different ways. Therefore please check your inverter's manual.

For information about the lights signalling the network search see chapter 12.2.

Step 2: Programming and configuring sensors (only when a sensor module is connected)

Activate the automatic network search at Configuration \rightarrow Solar Plant \rightarrow Sensors \rightarrow Search.



Illustration 5-8 First Steps – Searching Sensors

All detected SOL.Connect MultiScan (sensor modules) and sensors are displayed in an overview screen.

Please configure the sensor module according to your needs.

For information about the lights signalling the network search see chapter 12.2.



Step 3: Check measurement values for completeness

See *Plant status* \rightarrow *Inverter and* \rightarrow *Sensors* to check the measurement values.



6 Assembly

The data logger is designed for indoor use and use within switching cabinets. It can be mounted in both a horizontal and vertical position (the connections facing downwards) onto a cap rail system or with the included adapter (see illustration 6-1) directly to a wall.



Note

Like all electric devices also the data logger must be protected from humidity and especially from condensate formation.



Illustration 6-1 Mounting Adapter

The data logger is attached to the adapter by locking in place the backside screws of the data logger into the respective holes of the adapter. On choos-



ing a position for the data logger make sure that the connections of the cables are easily accessible at any time and that the cables are accessible from the bottom of the device. Provide suitable pull relieves!

Note

In order to prevent the device from falling down, the adapter should be mounted firmly to a wall using screw anchors.

Mounting the device in outdoor areas is only possible within adequate switch cabinets (protection class IP65).



Π

Note

Cables must only be connected and disconnected from the device with the power switched off.



7 Working with the SOL.Connect Center

7.1 User Rights, Access Rights

The data logger has two levels of access. These differ in the rights owned by the user.

Areas	Guest	Administrator
Welcome screen	✓	✓
Plant status	~	✓
Reports	✓	✓
Configuration		√
Download		✓

7.1 Registration

Enter the data logger's IP-address into the address field of an internet browser. After a moment the main screen appears.

In order to configure the data logger an administrator's password is necessary.

SOL Connect Cer	nter 3	\sim	Masual Your largarge •
Main mena	Authentification	required	
Plant state	Quer:	-	
Reports	Password		

Illustration 7-1 User Authentication



By factory default the administrator's password has been set to "admin/ admin".

Note

In order to prevent an unintended access from third parties change the password immediately after the first log-in (see chapter 7.6.4.2).

7.2 Overview / Tables and Diagram Functions

7.2.1 Working with the Submenu

Settings and changes are being performed in the submenus of the selected functions.

To change settings click on *Edit*. While clicking on *Cancel* takes you back to the menu without saving your changes. *Save* stores the changed settings.

System and configuration changes are being recorded as an event in the monitoring area (see 7.5).

Note

For several functions the Java Script support must be activated. For details please check your browser's manual.

On some tabs you see icons (symbols) which allow activating or deactivating settings directly in the overview screen. Setting / clearing the tick within the settings is automatically taken over by the system. All functions for setting


the event groups will remain active even if the monitoring function has been deactivated.

Monitoring can also be activated and deactivated directly in the overview screen:

Symbol	Meaning
0	Activate monitoring
Θ	Deactivate monitoring
8	Change settings

7.2.2 Table of Events

Recorded events are listed automatically by the system and are visible via *Monitoring* \rightarrow *Group of events* (e.g. system events).

Click on the desired event group. The protocol records the events as follows:



Illustration 7-2 Monitoring Protocol

All events are displayed in chronological, descending order starting with the most recent one.



7.2.3 Diagram analysis

The measurement data of your PV plant are graphically displayed at *Analysis* \rightarrow *Group of analysis*.

Select the respective group. Depending on the type of diagram you can browse through days, months and inverter groups.



Information

The maximum of the performance axis corresponds to the plant's maximum output (see chapter 7.7.3.1).

	Inverter setup grouped or ungrouped in the system
Last update:	2008-07-16 23:10:00
Inverter group:	all inverter groups
	Q 2008 M - 05 M - 06 M Q Back ↑ ↑ Forward
	Day Month Year

Illustration 7-3 Navigation Analysis

By default the inverter groups are displayed at first. Selecting a group shows the respective inverters.



39 User Manual

Events are recorded in the protocol as follows:



Illustration 7-4 Event Protocol in Analysis

Beneath the diagram all events are displayed in chronological order.



7.3 The Welcome Screen

The welcome screen displays an overview of the current status of your photovoltaic plant. Furthermore it shows the main menu.

		SOL Connect Center		
10000	_	Boole Bonneet Benner		
n menu			HT L	
t viste	0	The second	1 the	
ooning .	0	1 the		\odot
Sourceline		-HI IK	a market	>
rinad		1-1160	XIAN	
		1 84	M. C. M. D. S. C. D.	1.16.2
		Plant information		
	3	Description:	Nonteringsviden P/-Anlage	
	G	Owner:	Papendorf Software Engineering Grabit	
		-		
	0	Plant state		
	G	Current overall state:	•	
		Mode of power specification:	Active power requirements	
		Power specification level:	L1: 100%, L2: 100%, L3: 100%	
		Total power:	30 360 W	
		Total daily yield:	123.9 XWb	
		Last event:	2012-04-12 09:41:12	
		(kw)		
		400	AMAA	
		5		
		4 15 -	/	
		2.7	(
		4.00	100 1000 1100 11	19:00 22:00

Illustration 7-5 Welcome Screen

- **1** Menu navigation
- 2 Picture of the plant
- **3** Plant information
- Plant status (Status lights, overall performance, total daily yield, latest event)



- 5 Manual
- 6 Language selection
- **7** Software version

A potential alarm is being displayed on the main screen and can be confirmed by accepting it. Please check chapter 7.5.1 for further details.

If any inputs like e.g. switches are monitored the status displayed is "switched on".



Note

Performance Ratio is only possible in connection with the SOL.Connect MultiScan and an irradiance sensor.



7.4 Plant Status

The data logger collects energetic information, errors and status messages sent from the inverter. The plant status is a dynamic dialogue, which displays the measurement values in an overview in tabular form.



Illustration 7-6 Plant Status - Inverter



This table contains basic information about the **active** inverters (settings), like denominations, output power, daily yield and moment of last data re-trieval.



Note

This information depend on the type of inverter connected.

In addition the most important inverter data are displayed as a "Tooltip" (see Illustration 7-6). Hover the pointer over any status bar or inverter name. A pop up window opens (see Illustration 7-6).

Measurement values may be *updated* manually or automatically in 5 seconds intervals.



Note

For additional information about the inverter data please consult the inverter's manual.

Status details about the sensors connected to the sensor module are displayed after clicking *Sensors* in the navigation bar:



Plant state - Sensors	
	ke
Timestamp	2014-03-13 16:19:45
Serial number	81:
Environment temperature	16.4 °C
Module temperature	20.9 °C
Irradiation	255 W/m²
Day yield	- kWh
Power	- W
	Plant state - Sensors Timestamp Serial number Environment temperature Module temperature Irradiation Day yield Power

Illustration 7-27 Plant Status – Sensor Details



7.5 Monitoring

Monitoring contains an overview of all events available within the system. These events are classified in several groups. The events are listed in detail, can be examined and individually configured for distribution by e-mail.

- X - 1		
	Monitoring	
suptranu		
niegenstatus	Konfigurationaereigniase	
ionitoring	(Anderungen an der Konfiguration: neue Nachrichtenemptanger,)	
uswertungen	12.03.2014 11:52:55 Nachrichtenempfänger Potei Upload wurde hitzugefügt 18.03.2014 11:58:40 Konfiguration Systematik wurde geündent	
nfiguration	12 03 2014 00 29:51 Frontis Mosbus [UVD2] / [WR0207] (50 340470) Adresse 20 wurde gefunden	
wnicad		
	Systemenegrikee (Algemeine Systemereignisse z.B. Neuslant,)	
	13 03 2014 (6 05:03) Solarettag unplausitet (PR + 100%) - Senantetter möglici. Bite prifer/ 12 03 2014 (6 05:03) Solarettag unplausitet (PR + 100%) - Senantetter möglici. Bite prifer/ 11 03 2014 (13 05:02) Solarettag unplausitet (PR + 100%) - Senantetter möglici. Bite prifer/	
	Systeminouses (Minusiae, Ferlemetrunger,))	0
	12 05 2014 07 22:00 Oas System wurde neu gestatet 11,03 2014 18:23 31 Oas System wurde neu gestatet. 11,03 2014 08:16 08 Oas System wurde neu gestatet.	
	Ceringer Tagesertrag (Abweldtung Weidteelickter vom mittleren Gesomtingeserting zu noch)	0
	12.05.2014 18.05.02 Frenius Modbus (UVC2) / (NR0207) (50.348478) Errogesberdidung, -12.46 07.03.2014 18.05.03 Frenius Modbus (UVC4) / (NR0407) (50.348458) Errogesberdidung, -10.56 07.05.2014 18.05.03 Frenius Modbus (UVC4) / (NR0400) (50.348468) Errogesberdidung, -10.56	
	Wechsamentlerenegniese (vom Wechschlichter gemeilente Breignisse)	0
	14 05.2014 10 01:50 Westweinstler (UV02) / (WR0207) (50.348478) meter Energins GRD_ERROR 14 05.2014 10 01:48 Westweinstler (UV03) / (WR0302) (85.278467) meter Energins GRD_ERROR 14 05.2014 10 01:48 Westweinstler (UV04) / (WR0407) (50.348495) meter Energins GRD_ERROR	
	Energinede zum Leichungsmittlagement (Änderung der Leichungsvorgebe durch Mitzbeherber z.B. Leichungeretwitten)	
	Kaine Erugnisse vorhanten	
	Wechsenfolterausfall Wechselndroerist ober den Tag mitht americhae gewaarn	0
	Konse Engelsse vorhanden	
	Sensorereignisse Weisungen und Fehler im Bereich Sensorik;	
	20.02.2014 13.37:24 Sensoriables are Multison 31, Port: 2, X2,41 20.02.2014 13.37:20 Sensoriables are Multison 31, Port: 2, X2,41	

Illustration 7-7 Overview Monitoring



Configuration events:	Information about configuration changes, crea- tion and modification of message recipients.
System details:	Important of special notes or error messages (e.g. problems sending emails)
System information:	Important or special information and error messages (e.g. problem with the e-mail distri- bution)
Inverter events:	Events signalled from the inverter, like e.g. ex- cess voltage, excess temperature and supply interruption
No daily yield:	Inverter's deviation from the medium daily yield is to high
Inverter breakdown:	Inverter has not been available during the day.
Events regarding perfor- mance management:	Changes in the allowed power by the grid op- erator, e.g. performance reduction

The check for the plant monitoring (inverter breakdown, yield comparison and deviation) is performed **daily at 6 p.m**.

To open an event group click on the top line and all events recorded up to then are automatically being displayed by the system.



7.5.1 Triggering an alarm by an alarm contact

Once an alarm has been initiated a message is displayed on the welcome screen. You can confirm this alarm manually or have it automatically confirmed by the system in a time predefined in the settings (see chapter 7.7.2.3)

Plant state	
Current overall state:	•
Total power:	758 W
Total day yield:	6.3 kWh (2.52 €)
Performance ratio:	82 %
Alarm is switched on. Please acknowledge:	>> Alarm off





Information

The relay's response time is up to 5 minutes. Therefore slight delays might happen until the alarm contact is triggered.

The confirmation of an alarm is recorded in the list of configuration events.



7.6 Analysis

The **Energetic Reports** allow for various graphic data analysis periods which display performance and yield in relation to possible **malfunctions**.

Secure PV Monitorin	9		You are logged in as admin 4. Lo
	Reports		
7sin menu			
Plant stale	- In I	Normalized month yield	0
Vanturing	Allah	(Plant yield of a month based on 1140(a)	
leports			
20mhgur 300n		(Daily every every of each menter yield)	0
Sownioad	Tangent to the second second		
	Mark	Monthly yield for entire plant (Workily plant yield)	0
	datallik.	Annual yield for entire plant (Annual yield of plant and inverters)	6
	1	Daily power of entire plant (Daily power of part)	

Illustration 7-9 Overview Analysis

Daily plant yield:	Performance of all inverters during one day (line diagram)
Daily yield of inverters:	Overview about the inverter's daily during one day (bar diagram)
Monthly plant yield:	Yield of all inverters during one month (bar dia- gram)
Yearly plant yield:	Plant and inverter yield during one year (bar di- agram)



Nominal monthly yield:	Yield of all inverters during one month in rela-	
	tion to 1 kWp (bar diagram)	
Performance ratio of	The plant's target-performance comparison in	
the entire plant:	comparison with reference sensors (bar dia-	
	gram)	

i

Information

Performance Ratio is only available in connection with a SOL.Connect MultiScan and one irradiance sensor.



7.7 Configuration (on administrator level)

This is your entry point to perform in further submenus changes of the system and the PV plant's components.

Select *Configuration* and an overview screen opens with the momentarily system configuration and information about the data logger as well as the available and the engaged capacity of the internal memory (Compact Flash[®] card) and the main memory.

SOL.Connect C	enter 3	Manuel Your language
	KEX /	You are lagged in as admin Logo
	Configuration - System	i information
Main menu	4	
Plant state	System name:	SOL.Connect Center
Monitoring	Host name:	scc
Reports	System is running since:	37 day(s).
Configuration	System time:	2012-10-12 14 46 47
Core system	Hard disk capacity:	System: 1713MB total, 1210MB free, 24% used.
Communication		Data: 859MB total, 795MB free, 2% used. Config: 121MB total, 102MB free, 9% used.
• PV plant	Main memory:	250MB total, 59% used.
Security	Hardware temperature:	30 °C
Dowoload	Serial number:	199326P5111
	Supported devices:	SMA inverters
	Configuration - Software version	3.0.05
	Hardware version:	1.3

Illustration 7-10 Overview System Information

Information about hardware and memory are being updated automatically by the data logger and cannot be modified.



7.7.1 Core System

7.7.1.1 Network

The topic *Network* allows all necessary settings for of the data logger's network.

Host name, domain name, IP address, broadcast address, subnet mask, standard gateway and DNS server are already set as factory default.

You can choose between *own settings* (default) or *DCHP*. For DHCP please contact your LAN administrator as this means to change as well the IP address.

Note

Network configuration can only be changed by a network administrator, as this may lead to severe connection problems with the data logger.

Information

DHCP: "Dynamic Host Configuration Protocol" – dynamic creation of an IP address.

The data logger transmits the host name to the DHCP server in order to be easily detected within the network.



SOL.Connect Cel	nter 3		Manusi Your language
	Configuration - Net	twork - Edit	Too are sugged in as a uniting to be
Main menu	-		
Plant state	Operating mode:	Client mode	an an
Moniforing Reports		ODHCP ® My settings	
Configuration	Host name:	SCC	•
Core system	Domain name:	sol-connect de	1
Network	IP address:	102 109 1 226	
Nodem		182.106.1.230	
Edit start page	Subnet mask:	255.255.255.0	
System time	Broadcast address:		
System language	Standard gateway:	192,168 1.1	
In-JOutputs	DNS server:	192 168 1 10	
Report			
Software update	" Save " Cancel		
Factory Settings			
Communication			
• PV plant	* Mandatory field		
Security	** Setting can only be chang	ed by service user.	
Download			

Illustration 7-11 Configuration Network

The following settings are available:

Setting	Description
Operation mode	Operation mode of the data logger. Settings can only be performed by service personnel.
Hostname	e.g. Samplehost
Domain name	Name of the domain. Information available from your network administrator.
IP Address	Only active when no DHCP server is set. Default address: 192.168.1.190



Setting	Description
Broadcast address	IP address to reach all computers within a network.
Subnet mask	Default entry 255.255.255.0
Standard Gateway	IP address of the internet gateway. Information is available from your network administrator.
DNS Server	Information is available from your network adminis- trator.

Network default settings for internet access via modem dial-up (see chapter 7.6.1.2):

- IP address: 192.168.1.190
- Subnet mask: 255.255.255.0
- Standard Gateway: <blank>
- DNS server: 193.101.111.10



7.7.1.2 Modem

In case you wish to use a modem for dial-up the necessary information about the modem must be set (modem type, PIN, dial-up number, login name and password).

	2200 C 01 10200	122.23	
	Configuration - Mode	m - Edit	
Kan menu			
fast state	Modern type:	😇 Standard modem	
lonitoing		CSW modem	
Reports	Raud cols:	115200	7
omfiguration	a station of a station	Livere,	-251
Core system	configuration:	ATK3	
Metwork	PIN (If using GSM):		
Hodem			
Edit start page	Multiple subscriber number:	E	
System time	Number of come		
System kengange	animper or ranges	urtifical acceptation	-
ets cfut5+≤			
Report	Access number:	150150	
Software updale	Batis command:	A AMARTAN A	
Factory Settings		-	
Consumation	Login name:	<u>[83</u>	10
SV piani	Password:	****	
Security			
lownload	" Seve " Cancel		

Illustration 7-12 Configuration Modem

The following settings are available:

Setting	Description
Modem type	Type of the used modem
Baud rate	Max. velocity of the connected modem
Additional modem	Configuration command for the set-up of special op-



Setting	Description
configuration	eration modes
	GSM PIN Code. Available from your provider
PIN (for GSM)	This is an essential information with the use of a GSM modem as otherwise no connection can be established!

Setting	Description
Multiple subscriber	The multiple subscriber number (MSN) is an ISDN
number	phone number for a multi terminal access
Specified number of	Number of rings until the modem is automatically ac-
rings	cepting the call

Setting	Description	
	The provider's number for the internet dial-up, e.g.	
Access number	0192658	
	Don't forget the line access code of the extension!	
Dial in command	Configuration command, e.g. for internet dial-up via	
	GPRS	
Login name	User name for the internet dial-up, e.g. MSN	
Password	Password for the internet dial-up	

With some GSM modems the flow control is by default deactivated after switching it on. Therefore the registration of an additional command is essentially necessary to activate the hardware flow control!

These are the following commands:



- Siemens® MC/TC35: AT\Q3
- INSYS® ISDN 4.0: AT&R1&S1

Default modem settings for internet dial-up via MSN:

- Dial-up number: 0193670
- Login name: msn@easysurfer-eco.de
- Password: msn
- Additional modem command: ATX3

Note

When using a GSM modem near an international border the international roaming must be blocked in order to avoid international connection fees. Please contact your provider.

Prerequisite for the internet dial-up is the dial-out switch being turned on (see chapter 4). The momentary setting of this switch is visible in the overview of the modem configuration.



Note

To avoid unexpected costs the dial-out switch should be deactivated if not in use.

No notifications are being sent out while the internet dial-up is deactivated!

Once the modem connection has been configured you can test it. Please select *Test modem internet dial-up*.



7.7.1.3 Customize the Welcome Screen

You can customize the welcome screen as desired. Besides a picture of the plant you can add plant information such as name, description and operator individually.

	Configuration - Edit	main page	
Main menu	IN PA I	A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	
fant state	to the		
lonitoring			
Reports	11th		
Configuration			
Core system			
Network		a ter a turn ser a fund	
Modem	choose new picture:		
Edit start page		(recommended size: 905x250 pixelx; format: JPG)	
System time	Show on Welcome page		
System language			
In Dudnude	Plant information		
arroutputs	Show on Welcome page		
Reboot		CON CONTRACTOR	111
Reboot Software update	Name:"	SOL:Connect Center	
Reboot Software update Factory Settings	Name: 7 Description:	Monitoringsystem PV-Anlage	
Reboot Software update Factory Settings Communication	Image: Constraint of the second se	Monitoringsystem PV-Anlage Papendorf Software Engineering Gm	
Reboot Software update Factory Settings Communication PV plant	Narnet 7 Narnet 7 Description Owner.	Monderingsystem PV-Anlage Papendorf Software Engineering Gm	
Reboot Software update Factory Settings Communication PV plant Security	Narvet Narvet Description Owner Narvet Narvet	Solutioned Center Monitoringsystem PV Anlage Papendorf Software Engineering Gm Cancel	

Illustration 7-13 Customize the Welcome Screen



To chance the plant's picture select *Browse* to find a picture. However in case the selected graphic does not correspond to the prerequisites the existing graphic will remain active.

To activate the picture, set the tick in Display welcome screen.

Recommended	size:	605x250	pixel
Format: .jpg			

Apart from the fixed plant information name^{*}, description^{*}, and operator^{*} you can determine additional information. Click on *Insert text* \rightarrow *Identification*^{*} (max. 200 characters) and enter e text (max. 30 characters) into the field.



Information

Text formatting is possible by using HTML tags.

^{*} Mandatory field



7.7.1.4 System Time

The *system time* shows the data logger's current time. You can change this manually or have it synchronized automatically by an NTP time server.

An NTP time server is not activated by default. It is recommended to activate it after taking it into operation. Addresses are available in the internet.

SOI Connect Co	ntor 3	Venuel You anguage
JOL.CONNECT CE		vo, auf ogged in as some i toge
	Configuration - Syst	em time
Nain menu		
Plant state	Time zone:	(GMT-1h) Amsterdam, Berlin, Berne, Rome, Storkholm, Paris
Nontoing		>> Ealt
Reports	10 In	
Configuration	System dime:	1.mitsg.12. Oktober 2012 14,52(5)
Core system	Server time replication:	disatted
Network		w Edit
Voder		
Edi start page		
System time		
System language		
m-JOutputs		
Resput		
Software update		
Factory Settings		
+ Communication		
• Pv gan		
< secardy		
Download	F.1	

Illustration 7-1 Configuration – System Time



Time zone

To set the time zone select Time zone \rightarrow *edit.*

SOL.Connect Cer	iter 3	Nerusal Your engange - You perflugged in as schmill - Lugo
	Configuration - Sy	ystem time - Edit
Main menu	-	
Plaint stale	Region/Country:	Europe
Monitoring	Time zone:	1947 a like temperature Denis Denne Denne Starth Telle
Reports	Alexandra a	(Cast) * 20) An association, per tri, parmer, cromer, property
Configuration	" Same " Cancal	1
Cure system		1:
Network		
Voderr	/ Change of the time zone	requires rebool of the system (
Edit slart sage		
System time		
System lenguage	- F	
8-sQuipula		
Reboal		
Software update		
Factory Settings		
• Communication		
• PV pheni		
• Security		
Download		

Illustration 7-14 Configuration – Time Zone

Select *Region/Country* and automatically appears the respective time zone. Confirm your time zone. The adjustment from summer to winter time will take place automatically.

In case you don't want to perform the time adjustment between summer and winter time select "World (standard time)" and the respective time.





Note

Changing the time zone requires a restart of the system! This will take approximately 5 minutes and disconnects all network and modem connections.

Manual time settings

To set the time manually select System time \rightarrow edit.

SOI Connect Ce	nter 3		Marúal Your anguage 👻
			You are logged in as some Logout
	Configuration - Sys	tem time - Edit	
Msin menu			
Plant state	Dato:	2012 - 10 - 12	
Monitoring	fime:	15 2 30	
Reports	Server time rentitation:	Easthickel	
Configuration	Time autor		
Core system	Time server	0 pock/r/tp.org	
Network			
Vodern	Saving of time details might to	ake some time.	
Edit start page	" Save " Cancel		
System time			
System anguage	The base of the state of the second		
in-routputs	Only replicated with an activ	e modern connection	
Rabort			
Software update			
Factory Settings			
Enreusealon			
Pv/ plant			
Security			
Download			

Illustration 7-15 Configuration – Manual Setting of System Time

Enter *Date* and time and save the entry.

Select *Region/Country* and automatically appear the respective time zones. Select your time zone. The adjustment from summer to winter time will take place automatically.



In case you don't want to perform the time adjustment between summer and winter time select "World (standard time)" and the respective time.

Note

Changing the time zone requires a restart of the system! This will take approximately 5 minutes and disconnects all network and modem connections.

Manual time settings

To set the time manually select *System time* \rightarrow *edit*.

Information

NTP: "Network Time Protocol" standard to synchronize clocks within computer systems.

The system time is only synchronized on active internet connections.

Note

Be careful with system time changes: A time deviation of **more than 10 minutes** may cause problems with the data recorded before the change!

The synchronisation of time depends on the connection settings and the following conditions:

When?	Connection	Condition
Daily at midnight	Network connection	Correct setting of DNS and
, ,		gateway, see chapter 7.6.1.1.



When?	Connection	Condition
After successfully established connec- tion	Connection via mo- dem	The connection must be gener- ated by the data logger

7.7.1.5 System Language

The (default) system language of the data logger is German as set by factory default. However this can be changed individually for every system.

SOL.Connect Cer	iter 3	$\leq >$	Vicuale Voged in so admin 🚽 1 Opport
	Configuration - Sy	stem language - Edit	
Man menu	-		
Plant state	System language:	Deutach	
Mandanna			
Reports	P Save P Cancel		
Cadqualae			
· Core system			
Network			
Roders	100		
Fidt start page			
System Inte			
System Desguage			
k-/Dabula			
Sebort			
Software update			
Factory Settings			
• Communication			
+ PV plant			
· Security			
Download			

Illustration 7-16 Configuration System Language

Changing the system language will only come into effect once the current session has expired or a new session has been opened. If you wish to change the language immediately a browser restart is required.



7.7.1.6 In-Outputs

For PV plant monitoring additional inputs at the data logger may be configured and linked with the relay output.

SOL.Connect Ce	nter 3	X	24	Venusi	Your lenguage
100		KT	Y	You we logged in	saladyin -4, t
	Configurati	ion - Inputs and outpu	ts		
lan meno	Inputs				
tant state	Name -	Description	Outpol	Slatua	
lonitoring.	Func 1			Inactive	0
teports	tn			inactive	0
ดกมีรุมารถ์ดด					
Core system	Outputs				
factiwark	Name	Description	÷	Status	
Victor	Out		3	native	0
Edit start page					
System time					
Systemianguage					
An-Gulpata					
Report					
Software applice					
Fedary Settings					
Communication					
PV plant					
Security					
ownload					

Illustration 7-17 Configuration – In- and Outputs

Settings	Description
IN	Input
Func 1	Function switch for optional use
Out	Output





Note

An activated in- and output is prerequisite for a linkage.

Inputs

To configure the input select *IN/Func 1 --> edit*.

	Configuration -	Inputs and outputs - Edit	
Main menu			
Plant state	Nome:	Func 1	
Monitoring	Description:	Nam contact	1
Reports	Status:	IX active	
Configuration	Output:		
Core system	20200	1.2.	
Network	* Save: * Carrel	wal	
Votem	تتقسيمها والمتعقبي الم	2000 B	
Edit start page			
System line	1		
System language			
In-Outputs			
Retroit			
Software updale			
Factory Settings			
Commanycalion			
FV plant			
 Security 			
Developed			

Illustration 7-18 Configuration Input

The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
Name	IN / Func 1
Description	Individual denomination of the input.
Status	Activates / deactivates the input



Settings	Description
Output	Selecting the output

Note
Linking an input with an output deletes message recipients of the
type alarm contact.

Output

To configure the output select *Out --> edit*.

SOL.Connect Ce	nter 3	AN	Your briguings *
Secure PV Monitorin	g - Fronius Modbus Invert	er Edition	You are logged in as admin
	Configuration	poute and outpute. Edit	
		npots and outputs - Colt	
Main menu			1
Plant state	Name:	Signaling contact	
Meditoring	Description:	Alarm contact	
Reporta	Status:	I active	
Configuration	Output:		1
Core system	- 623		105
Network.	> Save > Canch	el	
Noder			
Colt start page			
System time			
Systemianquage			
in-ADuriputs			
Reboot			
Soflware update			
Factory Settings			
Communication			
* PV plent			
+ Security			
Download			

Illustration 7-19 Configuration Output



The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
Name	Out
Description	Individual denomination of the output.
Status	Activates / deactivates the output

7.7.1.7 Reboot

Rebooting the data logger might be necessary in very rare cases. However this should only be done at real emergencies. Rebooting terminates all system processes and restarts the system. During this period recording data by the data logger is disabled which might cause data gaps.



Illustration 7-20 Configuration - Restart





Note

The restart takes about 5 minutes and disrupts all network and modem connections.

7.7.1.8 Software Update

The data logger is capable to detect and upload automatically available updates. By default this feature is disabled.

SOL.Connect Cer	nter 3		Naruel Your language
	Software Update		
Hain menu.	The datalogger checks available	software updates on the SC Pr	onal server and applies the updates
Plant state			
Mentioring			
Reports	Automatic software update:	☑ active	
Configuration	Frequency:	weeky	
Core system			
Network	Alternative update server	T active	
Nodem		100000	
Eck start page	* Save * Cancel		
System time			
System language	* Wandatory held		
In-Oolpula			
Rebost			
Software update	43		
Factory Satinga			
Communication			
 PV plant 			
 Security 			
Download			

Illustration 7-21 Configuration – Software Update



The following settings are available:

Settings	Description
Automatic software update	Activate / deactivate the software updates
Frequency	Interval of transmission

Alternatively a different update server can be used. Activate this by ticking the respective box. Another input mask opens up:

Settings	Description
Server	Server address
Login	Allocated user name
Password	Allocated password

7.7.1.9 Factory Settings

You can quickly and easily reset the data logger via the user interface.

Please note that this means a reset to the factory default settings. This also completely deletes all personal settings and the saved measurement data. Therefore reset the data logger only back to factory defaults when you are absolutely sure or when services ask you to do so. This procedure cannot be interrupted!



SOL.Connect Ce	nter 3 Ysu artiropyst in zaliatorio 👘 Lee				
	Factory Settings				
Nan menu	You artend to reset your device to its factory settings.				
Plant state					
Nonima	An entry and changementions will be use. This process commune and real				
Reports	Please do not restarted the system without explicit request."				
Contigenation	* Bestor factor actions # Beton to main more				
Core system					
Network	* Changing the page during the process could result in undefined sits effects				
Rodon					
Fidt start page					
System Inc.					
System lance and					
li-iUstala					
Rebort					
Software speake					
Factory Settings					
Commission					
• PV plant					
• Security					
Download					

Illustration 7-22 Configuration – Factory Settings

7.7.2 Communication

7.7.2.1 E-Mail service

In order to use the message function an e-mail service has to be set-up. To do so the data logger needs the information from the SMTP server, login data, address of the sender and type of authentication.



SOL.Connect Cer	nter 3		Panual Your Brguage 🔹
1-1-12			o set equed in an actual - 1, 1 oquid
	Configuration - E-ma	il - Edit	
Wsinmern			
Plant state	SMTP server:	amp mail.com	•
Monitoring	Logies	ionn.doe#sampleaddreas.com	
Reports	Parcement		
Configuration	Passwora.		
• Core ayaters	Sender address:	john.dog&sampleaddrear.com	
Communisation	SMTP authentication:	d stabled	
5-mail acrysee			
Massage rempieries	Dispatch time of daily e-mails:	0 o'cock .	
FTP-Usiked	Presentative terms of annual-line a most		
Doplar	Lingentusi dinie di weekiy e-mail	s Sunday Solciock	
PV plant			
- Security	" cancer		
Download			
	* Mandatory field		

Illustration 7-23 Configuration E-Mail Services

The following settings are available:

Settings	Description
SMTP server (out- going mail server)	(Simple Mail Transfer Protocol) This information be obtained from the internet provider (see below) or the LAN administrator.
Login	Corresponds to the user names of the internet pro- vider.
Password	The password assigned by the internet provider. By security reasons each character of the password is only displayed to you in asterisks (*).
Sender	Corresponds to the e-mail address of the sending mailbox and serves to authenticate the SMTP server. An unknown sending address may prevent the e-mail from being sent.



entication – SMTP – turned on; the e-mail ac-
it information allocated by the internet provider
n creating the account. The only supported type
uthentication is SMTP authentication!

Additionally an individual transmission time for sending the notification e-mail can be defined:

Settings	Description
Dispatch time of dai-	Time of the daily e-mail transmission. Manual input of
ly e-mails	a time is not possible.
Dispatch time of	Time of the weekly e-mail transmission. Manual input
weekly e-mails	of a time is not possible.

To send the e-mails a so called free e-mail provider (provides free of charge e-mail services) may be used.

Prerequisite for the transmission of e-mails is an *SMTP server* at the provider's side. A list of the most well-known free e-mail providers and online services is available on the internet.



Note

Not every e-mail provider places a free-of-charge SMTP server at disposal. This feature may be connected to commercial e-mail services, e.g. "Premium"/"Plus"/"Extra"/"Pro"!


7.7.2.2 Notification Recipients

Apart from the e-mail provider a notification recipient is also necessary to send messages. There are several types of messages:

Type of message	Description	
Alarm contact	To connect sirens and lamps	
E-mail	Electronic letter	
FTP	Data upload onto an FTP server	
SOL.Connect Web	Data upload onto the SOL Connect Portal	
Portal		
	In contrast to e-mails important information is only	
	transmitted in the subject line of the message. This	
	allows the forwarding of the message as an SMS to a	
Condensed e-mail	mobile phone.	
	Example: Current day yield – plant name	
	(20.03.2007) = 34.340 kWh	

Before the messaging options are being configured, the notification recipient must be set-up (see chapter 8.1).



Note

When using a modem, the e-mail transmission is only working with an active internet connection, dial-out switch (see chapter 4).



Alarm contact

If a device such as a signal lamp is connected to the alarm contact of the data logger, the message recipient must be configured respectively.

SOL Connect Cen	ter 3	\mathcal{L}	itterund Ster briguitge •
			You are logged in as some
	Configuration - M	essage recipient - Edit	
Nain menu,	-		
Plant state	Туре	alares-contact	
Moniformig	Name:	Estson Land	
Reparts	Manufact extends		1
Configuration	Aterming period:	3 minute	السا
Core system	Status:	12 active	
Communication			
E-mail service	²⁰ Save ¹⁰ Cancel		
Message recipients			
FTP-Upked	* Mandalory field		
Display			
+ PV plant			
· Security			
Oswilload			

Illustration 7-24 Message Recipient – Alarm Contact

The following settings are available:

Settings	Description
Туре	Alarm contact
Name	Individual identification name
Alarm peri-	Choose the duration of the alarm (from 1 minute up to 48
od	hours and permanent alarm)
Status	Activates / deactivates the alarm contact

The alarm contact automatically switches off after expiration of the preselected duration. You can also manually switch off the alarm confirmation.



E-mail/Short E-mail

SOL.Connect Cent	ter 3		Manual Your language 💌
1-1-1-			You are logged in as: admin Logout
	Configuration - Mes	ssage recipient - Edit	
Main menu			
Plant state	Туре	E-Mail	
Monitoring	Name:	Lioha Doa	•
Reports	C		
Configuration	E-mail address:	john.doe@sampleaddress.com	-
Core system	Status:	II active	
Communication	Recipient Language:	English	
E-mail service			
Message recipients	After setting up the message	channel notification setting can be made here	
FTP-Upload			
Display	" Save " Cancel		
PV plant			
Security	* Mandatory field		
Download			

Illustration 7-25 Message Recipient - E-mail

Settings	Description
Туре	E-mail
Name	Name of the recipient, e.g. John Doe
E-mail ad-	Internet address of the recipient, e.g.
dress	john.doe@sampleaddress.com.



Settings	Description
Status	Activates / deactivates e-mail. Recipients already set-up can be momentarily deac- tivated (e.g. during their vacation times).
Recipients Ianguage	Language of the e-mail.

FTP

SOL.Connect Cen	ter 3	Hansel Your Briguage *
1201		You are koppedinest admin Logow
	Configuration - M	lessage recipient - Edit
Man menu	-	
Plant state	Туре	FIP
Monitoring	Name:	801 Oceanet Manifester
Reports	100000	
Configuration	Sarvar	set connect.de
• Cire system	Login:	john.doe@sampleaddress.com
Communication	Password:	*****
E-mail service	Status:	li actve
Meissage recipients		
FTP-Upped	* Save * Cancel	
Перву		
 FV plant 	* Mandatory field	
Security	0.000000000	
Downroad		

Illustration 7-26 Message Recipient - FTP-Upload

Settings	Description
Туре	FTP
Name	Individual identification, e.g. inverter data.



Settings	Description
Server	Destination address
Login	Login
Password	Password
Status	FTP activated /deactivated

7.7.2.3 FTP-Upload

The recorded measuring data are being uploaded onto an FTP server or the SOL.Connect Portal by FTP upload.

A swift internet access to the server performs the download of measuring data and the creation of respective performance and yield diagrams.

SOL.Connect Cer	iter 3	Versel Your language *
		topol sub-
	Configuration - F	FTP-Upload - Configuration
Nan menu		
Plant state	Replication:	Platine
Nonlining	Description:	Replication of the data logger configuration onto a FTP
Reports	Frequency:	
Configuration		
Core system	Kecipient:	ETIFTP SQL Contect Monitcong
Communication		
6-mail service	No transfer configured	
Исмаре техрипта	P Save P Cance	
PTP-Upload		E.J.
Display		
• FV past		
+ Security		
Download		

Illustration 7-27 FTP-Upload – Sensor Data



Settings	Description
Notification	Ticking / unchecking the select box activates / deactivates
Notification	the data transfer.
Description	Individual shortcut of the group. Leaving this line blank
Description	sets the description back to the default text.
Interval	Frequency of the data transfer.
Recipient	SOL.Connect Web Portal or FTP recipient

To upload the measuring data create a message recipient FTP.

Below are listed the possible intervals in comparison to the FTP upload groups:

Group	Hourly	Daily
Sensor data	Х	Х
WXT details	Х	Х
Events	Х	Х

Define the transmission time at the item e-mail services.



7.7.2.4 Display (optional)

A display may be connected directly or remote to the data logger (remotely controlled display requires installation of a serial Ethernet converter).

Value	Description
#	Starting signal
00241479	Total yield = 00241479 kWh
001234	Daily yield = 001234 kWh
001234	Performance (Pac) = 0012,34 kW
0000	lac (is not displayed)
0000	Upv (is not displayed)
0000	Uac (is not displayed)
4567	Daily yield 2 = 4567 Wh (usually not used)
<cr><lf></lf></cr>	End signal (optional)
Result:	#002414790012340012340000000000000004567

The following data string is sent to the display using type HvG:

Characters printed in "red" are added as enhanced HVG-protocol to support plant performances > 100 kW. However the display must be designed adequately which requires coordination with the display's manufacturer.





Information

The display must be operated in the same ,HVG-mode' as predefined in the data logger.

The enhanced HVG-protocol in general may be used for plants up to 9999,99 kW performance if the display supports the enhanced HVG-protocol.



Information

Check the network configuration of the serial ethernet converter with an administrator if possible!



Information

Further information may be found in the display's and the serial ethernet converter's manual.



Depending on the connection of the large-scale display (see chapter 0) and the plant's nominal performance the input signal requires configuration.

SOL.Connect Cer	nter <mark>3</mark>	X			Manual Your anguage	Z
					are logged in as: admin — I	Logo
	Configurati	ion - Display	/ - Edit			
lain menu	_					
'lant state	Display type:		HVG			
lonitoring	Connection:		COM Puezz			
teports			COM-Port 2			
Configuration	Refresh every:		5 seconds			
Core system	Display infe	na atlan				
Communication	Display Info	rmation				
E-mail service	Display row	Description		unit	Format	
Nessage recipients	1	Power		kW	XXXXX	
FTP-Upload	2	Income today	4	kWh:	XXXX	
Display	2	Day yield 2		Wh	X00X	
PV plant	3	Yield total		[kW	X00000X	
Security						
	* Save *	Cancel				

Illustration 7-28 Configuration Display

The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
Type of display	Schneider, HVG, HVG (plant performance > 100kW) or RI- CO
Connection	Serial interface (COM2 RS485) or remote display
Address*	IP-Address or name of serial Ethernet converter (only when using a remote display)

^{*} only with use of a remote display



Settings	Description
	Note Enter IP-addresses without <i>http://</i> prefix.
Port*	Port-settings of the serial ethernet converter
Update	Update time of display data.



Note

Saving the display configuration automatically triggers a restart of the system.



7.7.3 PV plant

7.7.3.1 General Settings

At *Solar Plant* defines information about the entire plant and the monitoring options. These may be adjusted individually for each PV-plant.

SOI Connect Center	3	Nanual Your language
Sol.commer commer		You are logged in as admin Logo
	Configuration - Gener	ral settings - Edit
Main menu		
Plantistate	Nominal power of plant:	1.6 kV/p *
Monitoring		
Reports	Supervisory options	
Configuration	Minimum performance ratio:	% (notification if limit exceeded)
Core system	Inverter failure:	
Communication	Comparison deviation:	10 % of mean value (usual 10%)
PV plant	Minimum income for	
General settings	income comparison:	5 KWh per day (usual 10% of max. day income)
Inverter	Reaction holding time:	none
Sensors		Selection of the second s
Control station	" Save " Cancel	
Reinbursement		
Administration of groups of inverter	* Mandatory field	
Power management	U	
 Security 		
Download		

Illustration 7-29 Solar Plant

The *Monitoring Options* dare used to supervise the inverters and trigger alarms:

Breakout WR (Inverter)

Activate breakout WR if you wish to trigger an alarm in case of inverter breakout. The alarm is then triggered once an inverter has not communicated with the data logger during the whole day.



Minimum-Performance-Ratio

An alarm is triggered when the performance of the plant and the defined minimum performance ratio (percentage ratio between target and actual performance) falls below.

Information

Performance Ratio is only possible in connection with the SOL.Connect MultiScan and an irradiance sensor.

Yield Deviation

The comparison of yield is only performed once two or more inverters are active.

Alarms are triggered as soon as an inverter has fed-in during the past day less energy in comparison to the other inverters. Reason for this could be soiling, partial malfunction of the solar cells or a problem within the inverter itself.

Determine at *Yield Deviation* the deviation in percentage from the average which serves as a basis for evaluating yield. The following settings are needed for the yield deviation:

- Yield Deviation: deviation in percentage of an inverter in relation to the expected share of yield.
- Minimum Yield for Yield Comparison: In order to avoid erroneous alarm triggering on days with very low irradiance a minimum yield may be defined. If the entire plant's yield is below the minimum yield not the comparison of energy and the alarm triggering will be blocked.
- Nominal Power of Plant: The maximum power must be defined in the field [kWp]. Entering "0" deactivates the yield monitoring.



The maximum power can be defined individually for each inverter.

Evaluation is done as follows:

The daily yield of each inverter is divided by the maximum performance of each solar module installed to this inverter.

The relative yield of each single inverter is determined as follows:

Relative Yield = Energy per day [kWh] / installed power [kWp]

This relative yield is then compared to the other inverters. In case the deviation in percentage is above the predefined minimum yield an alarm is being triggered.

Response Time Delay

Additionally a delay in the response time until an alarm is being triggered can be determined ("Response Time Delay) (none = the alarm is triggered immediately after the event happened).

You can also receive alarm messages via e-mail. For that purpose an e-mail recipient must be set-up (7.7.2.3).

i

Information

Seasonal reasons may cause false alarms, e.g. snow fall or shadowing due to the setting sun, etc.



7.7.3.2 Inverter

At Inverter you'll find all inverters known to the system. These can be installed individually for your PV plant. Furthermore this triggers the search for new inverters.

This allows a comfortable *search* for all active, operative inverters (it's also called *scan*) and is a prerequisite to work with the data logger.

Inverter:	» Search

Illustration 7-30 Search for Inverters

A search can be performed at any time. Newly found inverters appear in the protocol from this moment on.



Once all inverters have been detected select a new inverter to start configuration.

SOL.Connect Center	3			Varial Yeur languag	le 🗕
		1		Top antiogged mass admin	Logoul
	Configuration - Inverte	er - Edit			
Nainmenu		a) (1770)			
Plant state	Serial number:	514402005			
Rentering	Type:	WR15-005			
Reports	Description:	WR15-005		1	
Configuration	Group:	Lunamused	E)		
< Core system		Londrowen	Tes la		
 Communication 	Status:	IK) active			
PV plant	Monitoring:	12 active			
General settings	max. power input (AC-Power):	1655		W.A.	
Inverter.	Comment:	1		3	
Seriesre				100	
Control attances		1		30	
Remberatment	* Save * Delete *	Cancel			
Administration of groups of invertor					
Power management	* Mandatory Ireid				
Beounty					
Download					

Illustration 7-31 Configuration Inverter

The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
Inverter serial number	An identifier allocated by the manufacturer
Inverter name	Individual denomination (unique designation) of invert- ers. No special characters or blanks! Denominations are considered as well within the analysis of daily yield.
Inverter group	To group inverters. One or more groups may be defined (e.g. group 1 and group 2).



Settings	Description
Inverter status	Activate / deactivate status Only active inverters will appear in the plant status, in- active inverters are hidden by default!
Monitoring	Activate / deactivate monitoring options
Maximum feed-in power (AC-power)	This shows the maximal performance reached so far. Newer and higher values override older entries.

Define the settings individually for each inverter.

Delete removes the inverter from the system!

Automatic Network Search

Daily at 10 a.m. and 2 p.m. the system initiates a network seach cycle. The data logger searches for all network participants. Not yet registered participants are added automatically and logged *in the configuration events proto-col.*

Information

Active inverters which are already marked deleted are automatically added again with a network search cycle. To prevent this mark the *inverter status* as deactivated.



П

7.7.3.3 Administration of groups of inverters

A PV plant consisting of many inverters and subsystems often might have a confusing layout. The inverters can be grouped and administered easily with this function.

SOL.Connect Cente	3		Manual Your language 🔻
12/02/	$\mathbb{Z} \setminus \mathbb{Z}$		You are logged in as: sdmin
	Configuration - Adm	inistration of groups of	finverter
Main menu			
Plant state	Group	ungrouped	
Monitoring	Name of the group	unmound	*
Reports		Lugioopea	
Configuration	Overview of the group	ing	
Core system	* Deselect all * Sele	sct all	
Communication	10		
• PV plant	ungrouped		
General settings	14402905		
Inverter	514402852		
Sensors			
Control station	P Save P Delete	" New Cancel	
Reimbursement	1		
Administration of groups of Inverter	* Mandalory field		
Power management			
Security			
Download			

Illustration 7-32 Administering Inverter Groups

The following settings are possible:

Setting	Description
Group	Available groups
Name of group	Name of an inverter group



To add a further / new inverter group:

- Select new
- Enter a name for this group.
- Place a check mark at the respective inverter.
- Click ok → save

To add an inverter into an **existing inverter group**:

- Select a group
- Place a check mark at the respective inverter.
- Click ok → save

A group can only be defined in connection with one inverter.

Information

Delete does not remove the inverter from the system but only from a group and marks this inverter as *ungrouped*



7.7.3.4 Sensors (optional)

Additional sensors may be connected and recorded via the SOL.Connect MultiScan. All sensors known to the system are shown here and can be edited individually.

The comfortable search for sensor modules detects all operational, active sensor modules.

Sensor modules:	» Search
Illi	ustration 7-33 Searching Sensor Modules

Delete removes a sensor module from the system.

7.7.3.5 Control Station (optional)

The configuration can only be viewed and edited at a data logger while in control station mode.



See attached quick guide for details about the active control station mode.



7.7.3.6 Earnings

To display the financial revenue analysis some settings are necessary at first.

Depending on the choice of feed-in tariff the data collected are customized.

Self-defined earning setting

Manually define your own model of feed-in tariff determining a period and the amount per kWh. This should allow calculating most international subsidy schemes. However prerequisite for this manual definition is a thorough knowledge of the respective subsidy model!

	Configuration - Earn	iings - Edit		
Main menu				
Plant state	Earnings:	Self defined earning settings		
Monitoring		Reserve and the second s		
Reports	Plant information			
Configuration	Plant type:	Fasade		
Core system	Size of the plant:] Here
Communication				KO
PV plant	Year of installation:	January 2011		
General settings	Currency:	Euro		
Grid Integration				
Control station	Earnings			
Inverter	Start date	End date	Farnings	
Administration of groups of leverter	2011-03-01	2013-03-31		Inits per KWh
Sensore	•			
Earnings				
Security	» Save » Cancel			
)ewpload				

Illustration 7-34 Own Model of Feed-in Tariff



Plant Information

Plant information is only informative and has no influence on the subsidy:

Settings	Description
Plant type	Select your type of plant
Size of plant	The size oft he PV plant is calculated automatically from "Nominal power of plant" (Configuration \rightarrow PV plant \rightarrow General settings, see chapter 7.7.3.1)
Year of commission- ing	Year of commissioning of the PV plant
Currency	Select the desired currency

Subsidy

To add the subsidy period and amount add one line (\square) . Define a start and end date and the rate of subsidy per kWh.

To delete a subsidy click minus (🕒)



Information

The subsidy period always comprises entire months!

7.7.3.7 Power management (optional)

For the performance management of a SOL.Connect Power Manager the relay position of the ripple control recipient (RCR) must be configured.



	Con	figura	tion	Pour		You are logged in as: admin 🚽 L
	Con	ilgura	uon -	FUW	ermanagement	
Plant state	Valid	ation nor	ind of si	nat:	5 succends	
Monitoring	vance	anton ber	nu vi an	Jugar.	3 8000F08	
Reports	Statu	is con	figura	tion		
Configuration	C1	C2	C3	64	Operation mode	maximum active Power
Core system	4	0	0	0	Active power requirements	100 %
Communication	0	1	0	0	Active power requirements	60 %
Dif-last	0	0	1	0	Active power requirements	30 %
PV plant	0	0	0	া	Active power requirements	0%
General settings	N Edit					
Inverter	W EUR	<u> </u>				
Sensors						
Control station						
Reimbursement						
Administration of groups of inverter						
Power management						
Security						
Deveload						





The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
	Dauer der Signalprüfung des Rundsteuerempfän-
Poriod of signal	gers. Mindestdauer der Signalvorgabe des
renou or signar	Rundsteuerempfängers (K1 K4) bis zur Akzep-
	tierung durch den Datenlogger
К 1 К4	Channel 1 to 4 of the RCR
Active	To (de-)activate
Operation mode	Active power set points
Maximum power set point	0 – 100 % max. power set point



Note

A power set point of 0 % reduces the performance not entirely to

0 W. A minimal power remains which the inverter feeds in.



7.7.4 Security

7.7.4.1 Public Access

The status and the welcome screen can be shown in public or for demonstration purposes. In public means that this is not protected by a password.

SOI Connect Co	Manual Your language
SUL.CONNECT CE	You are logged in as: admin 🕴 Logo
	Configuration - public access
Main menu	The user interface can be used without login if the public access is set to active. Is the public access deactivated the user
Plant state	Interface will be display after successful login.
Monitoring	
Reports	
Configuration	Public access: acrive
Core system	" Deactivate " Cancel
Communication	
 PV plant 	
Security	
Public access	
Pasaworda	
Download	

Illustration 7-36 Public Access

For an active public access a password is only required to access the configuration and monitoring area.



7.7.4.2 Passwords

The password administration enables the user and administrator to change passwords.

SOI Connect Ce	enter 3	Manual Vour language 💌
en for		You are logged in as admin + Logout
	Configuration - Pass	swords - Edit
Main menu		
Plant state	Username:	User
Monitoring	Password:	1
Reports	Password confirmation:	
Configuration		
• Core system	» Save » Cancel	
Communication		
• PV plant		
Security		
Public accesa		
Passwords		
Download		

Illustration 7-37 Passwords

A password must consist of at least 6 characters (maximum 16 characters).



7.8 Download

7.8.1 Plant Data

The data download offers the possibility to display stored data, retrieve data and to save them locally.

A Car		
	Download - Plan	t data
Vair menu	Plant som	
itanit state	Data:	Timeatamp, Datalogger number, Power, Income today, Naasured Income, mediation
landsring		Imediation income today
eports	Period:	2012-01-01 to: 2012-10-15
onfiguration	Record size:	3.6 MB
ownload	* Download	
Plant data		
Decementation	Inverter details	
	Data:	Timestano, Device number, Serial number, AC-votage 1, AC-current 1, AC-votage AC-current 2, AC-votage 3, AC-current 3, Power, Income today, AC Frequency, PV votage 1, PV current 1, PV votage 2, PV current 2, PV votage 3, PV current 3 Temperature, Issuérong researce, Leakage current, Status, Error Error number, Power find, Physing, CosPti
	Period:	2012-04-14 to: 2012-10-12
	Record size:	22.9 WB
	> Download	
	Sensor data:	
	Dada:	Timesterp, Device number, Serial number, Environment temperature, Module temperature, Irradiation, Income today, Power
	Period:	2012-06-09 to: 2012-10-12
	Record size:	928 KB
	» Download	
	Plant events	
	Oata:	Timestamp, Event type, Event
	Period:	2012-04-13 to 2012-10-15
	Record size:	412 KB

Illustration 7-38 Overview Download

Plant Summary

Contains the data regarding the performance total, output power and time stamp as well as



irradiance power and irradiance energy as of today.

Inverter DetailsContains detailed information about each single inverter. The desired data can be selected individually.

- Sensor Data
 Contains detailed information with time stamp of the sensors connected. The desired data can be selected individually. This is only available in connection with a SOL.Connect MultiScan.

 Contains all events occurred equipformation
- Plant EventsContains all events occurred, e.g. information,
warnings and malfunctions.

All information available from the data logger is displayed on the download page in the following order:

- Data (fixed values for events)
- Time period
- Size of protocol (in KB, or MB)

The list of data columns is shown on the download page depending on the type of protocol.



SOL.Connect Ce	enter 3	Manual Your language.
		You are logged in as: admin Logou
	Download - Plant	summary
Main menu		
Plant state	Data:	Timestamp, Datalogger number, Power [W], Income today (kWh), Measured income
Monitoring		(kivh), Fradiation (VVme), Fradiation income today (kivh)
Reports	Period:	2012-01-01 to: 2012-10-15
Configuration	Record size:	3.6 WB
Download	from:	2012 10 14
Plant data	to:	2012-10-15
Decumentation	File type:	tot Compressed transmission
	» Download » Ca	ncel

Illustration 7-39 Download Form

Set the following criteria to prepare a download:

- Desired time period in days. All data records available within this time frame are displayed.
- Select the data columns. This is not available for the plant summary as this protocol provides fixed data for download.
- File format .txt (text file)
- Additional selection of a compressed transmission which allows a quicker download of data for large data quantities or in case of a modem connection. Up-to-date browsers (e.g. Internet Explorer) decompress files automatically!

The time stamp cannot get deactivated.

Click Download. Depending on the data volume this may last several seconds. As soon as the download is finished the options to open the file or to store it locally show up in a separate window. There the consolidated data can be



stored locally or by click on open displayed directly with the allocated program.

Documentation

Download the respective user manual in PDF format.



Information

The download of files might be blocked by a pop-up blocker within the Internet Explorer[®], Firefox[®] and / or a firewall. Consult the options and user manuals of the respective software manufacturer!

	Download - Documentation	
Main menu	🔁 Manual	
Plant state		
Monitoring	🔁 Open Source License	
Reports		
Configuration		
Download		
• Plant data		
Documentation -		

Illustration 7-40 Documentation Download



8 Set-up Messaging

You can configure and send individually customized notifications.

To send messages the following steps must be followed:

- Set-up e-mail service.
- Set-up message recipient.
- Allocate messages to a recipient.
- Determine recipients in monitoring groups and / or analysis groups.

E-mails which could not be sent due, e.g. caused by an erroneous e-mail address will be recorded in the system messages. It is advised to sort these out immediately!

In case several people shall be informed at the same time it is recommended to use just one single message recipient as distributing address (e.g. support@sampleaddress.com).

Information

Should you - despite correct configuration - not receive e-mails please check your spam filter.

In addition please check regularly the sending e-mail account because in most cases of problems a message is being returned.

Information

On exclusive use of a modem sending e-mails is only possible with an active internet connection (dial-out switch), see also chapter 4



8.1 Allocate Messaging to a Recipient

Under point Configuration \rightarrow Communication \rightarrow Message recipient you can configure the message recipient and allocate messages.

	Configuration - Me	ssage recipient - Edit	
lain menu			
lant state	Туре	E-Mail	
lenitoring	Name:	John Dos	-
eports	E-mail address:	john doe@sampleaddress.com	-
Configuration	Status:	2 active	
Core system	Baciniest Language		1.21
Communication	Necipient Language.	English	
E-mail service	An and a second second		
Message recipients	Nooncations.		
FTP-Upload	Monitoring:	El System event (daily) active El System details (daily) desclivated	
Display		Configuration events (hourly) active	
PV plant		Events of power management (hourly) active	
Securty		No daily yield (daily) active	
Download	10000000000	Low daily yield (daily) active	
	Reports:	Daily yield of inverters (daily) active Monthly yield for entire plant (daily) active Annual yield for entire plant (weeldy) active Daily power of entire plant (hourly) active Performance ratio (daily) active Normalized month yield (daily) active	
	The saving of the setting of t	he notifications might take some time.	

Illustration 7-41 Messaging for News Recipients



A new recipient requires set-up first in order to be allocated to receiving news.



Note

An exception is the news recipient of type FTP. After saving the settings this can no longer be modified. A new recipient must be set-up in this case.



8.2 Monitoring

Under point Monitoring \rightarrow Monitoring group \rightarrow Change Settings you can configure the messaging settings and allocate recipients.

	Configuration - S	System event
Main menu		
Plant state	Notification:	I active
Monitoring	Description:	General system events such as reboot
Reports	Frequency:	daily
Configuration	Baciniast	
Download	Necipiente	E E-Mail: John Doe
	" Save " Cancel	

Illustration 7-42 Change Monitoring Settings

Settings	Description
Messaging	Activates / Deactivates the messaging
Description	Short description of the monitoring group. The name of the monitoring group cannot be changed.
Interval	Frequency of messages
Recipient	Recipient of the messages (see also chapter 7.7.2.2)





Note

Messages can only be sent when the messaging function is active, and an interval and a recipient has been defined.

These are the possible intervals in comparison to the event groups:

Event group	immediately	Immediately with hourly reminder	Hourly	Daily	Weekly
System events	Х		Х	Х	
System details				Х	Х
Configuration events			Х	Х	Х

Immediately:	Immediately (in some cases after a certain response time),
	after this no reminder will happen.

Immediately, with hourly reminder:

- Hourly: It is checked every hour on the hour if events of the eventgroup happened within the past hour. These are consolidatedwith possible pending events and sent out together.
- *Daily:* It is checked *once a day* if events of the event group happened during the previous day. These are consolidated with possible pending events and sent out together.



Weekly: It is checked weekly if events of the event group happened during the past 7 days. These are consolidated with possible pending events and sent out together.

8.3 Reports

Configure the communication settings and allocate recipients at Analysis \rightarrow Analysis group \rightarrow Settings.

	Configuration - Da	ally yield of inverters
Main menu		
Plant state	Notification:	Z lactive
Monitoring	Description:	Daily overview of each inverter yield
Reports	Frequency:	
Configuration	Distant and a second	
Download	Display of events.	Events will be displayed at the reports (except annual reports)
	Recipient:	III E-Mail: John Doe

Illustration 7-43 E-Mail Distribution of Analysis

The following settings are possible:

Settings	Description
Messaging	Activates/deactivates messaging
Description	Quick description of the analysis group.



Settings	Description	
	Information The name of the analysis group must not be modi- fied.	
Interval	Frequency of messaging	
Display events	Activates/deactivates the display of events (except the an- nual diagram).	
Recipient	The recipient allocated (see as well chapter 7.7.2.3)	

See below for the possible intervals in comparison to the event groups:

Analysis group	hourly	Daily	weekly
Daily performance	Х	Х	
Daily yield	Х	Х	
Monthly yield*		Х	Х
Standardized monthly		Х	Х
yield			
Annual yield			X

Hourly: Always on the hour an updated analysis with events occurred

^{*} Entspricht der Versandzeitpunkt nicht gleich dem Monat oder Jahresende, dann wird zusätzlich eine E-Mail gesendet.


is distributed.

- *Daily:* Always once a day an updated analysis with events occurred is distributed.
- *Weekly:* Always weekly an updated analysis with events occurred is distributed.



9 XML-Upload by the SOL.Connect Center

Depending on the user configuration the **SOL.Connect Center** cyclically (typically on an hourly basis) transmits the recorded measurement data to an FTP server in a predefined hierarchy and nomenclature. The file format is XML:

SOL.Connect Center serial number

- → Type data source (MultiScan, SMA etc.)
 - → Time stamp.xml.gz

Example:

- CI8000P1400
 - → MultiScan
 - → 20090618140613.xml.gz

The XML file contains arrays from all measurements that have been collected since the last upload. The data are compressed in gzip.

9.1 Structure of the XML File

Below is an explanation of the XML structure. This represents a data table composed of one column header and the subsequent data lines.

Section <description>

The attributes of the single data columns are defined in the area <description>.



Attribute	Description
col_ref	Column header = Name of the reference of a data
	base (see chapter 9.1.1.1).
dict_ref	Further description, reserved for future extensions;
	entries are identical to col_ref.
data_type	Definition of the data type (see chapter 9.1.2).
unit	Applied SI-unit (e.g.: °C, V, W/m ²).
data_size	Data size in Byte (e.g.: 2, 4, 32, 2048), which
	implies for example for numerical data the maximal
	number of digits.
data_precision	Definition of the values after the decimal point
	(granularity). This typically corresponds to the ac-
	curacy of the measurement (e.g.: 1, 0.01,
	0.001).

9.1.1.1 Description of the Column Header (col_ref)

The declaration of col_ref defines the column header in the table of a database and thus the names of the respective measurement data.

The following measurement data are available for a SOL.Connect Center:

col_ref	Example
timestamp	Time stamp at the beginning of the measure-
	ment. Consists of date and time at the moment
	of the beginning of the minute-by-minute meas-
	urement cycle.



col_ref	Example
inverter_id	Internal reference number of the measurement
	place for administrative purposes:
	Together timestamp and inverter_id create a
	common unique code for a data record.
serialnumber	Serial number
	Depends on the manufacturer of the connected
	inverter. Measurement data correspond to plant
	status (for a description see the manual of the
	inverter's manufacturer)

9.1.1.2 Data Type (data_type)

The data type defines the set-up of the information. This is important for the structure of the data base.

data_type	Description
Т	Time stamp: time stamp, contains date and time of
	the measurement.
С	Controller: Serial number of the ISET-mpp meter
	measuring card
S	String: Text , it's length is defined by data_size
I	Integer: signed integer
J	Natural number
R	Real: signed decimal number



9.1.2 Section <row>

Each data line corresponds to one section <row> within the XML file Je which contains the data elements per column as <item>.

9.2 Example of an XML File

The XML file is separated into header, declaration, and data.

```
?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8"?>
<!DOCTYPE sccdata [
   <!ENTITY auml "&#228;">
   <!ENTITY ouml "&#246;">
   <!ENTITY uuml "&#252;";
   <!ENTITY Auml "&#196;">
   <!ENTITY Ouml "&#214;">
   <!ENTITY Uuml "&#220;">
   <!ENTITY szlig "&#223;">
   <!ENTITY quot "&#34;">
   <!ENTITY gt "&#62;">
   <!ENTITY % lt "&#60;">
   <!ENTITY % amp "&#38;">
   <!ENTITY deg "&#176;">
   <!ENTITY sup2 "&#178;">
   <!ELEMENT sccdata (info,description?,row*)>
   <!ELEMENT info (item*)>
   <!ELEMENT description (column*)>
   <!ELEMENT column (#PCDATA)>
       <! ATTLIST column
           col ref CDATA #REQUIRED
           dict_ref CDATA #IMPLIED
           data type CDATA #IMPLIED
           unit CDATA #IMPLIED
           data_size CDATA #IMPLIED
           data precision CDATA #IMPLIED
```

Illustration 9-1 Header of XML-file



```
<?xml version="1.0" encoding="UTF-8" ?>
  <!DOCTYPE sccdata (View Source for full doctype...)>
- <sccdata>
   – <info>
         <item key="xmlversion" value="12" />
         <item key="hwversion" value="2.3" />
         <item key="swversion" value="3.0.0.4" />
         <item key="softwaretype" value="psescc_mpp" />
         <item key="serial" value="179544P1311" /
         <item key="guid" value="92b67ed3-626f-4da0-9e7c-18444a47f75c" />
         <item key="name" value="SOL.Connect meter mpp" />
         <item key="opmode" value="0" />
         <item key="interval" value="60" />
         <item key="timezone" value="+0200 CEST" />
         <item key="type" value="details" /
         <item key="mainclass" value="MPP" />
         <item key="class" value="MPP" />
         <item key="language" value="de" />
         <item key="startdate" value="2012-07-04 11:57:00" />
         <item key="enddate" value="2012-07-04 12:02:00" />
         <item key="now" value="2012-07-04 12:05:09" />
         <item key="resetcounter" value="1" /:
         <item key="vertexinterval" value="10" />
         <item key="characteristicinterval" value="60" />
      </info>
   - <description>
         <column col_ref="timestamp" dict_ref="timestamp" data_type="T" unit="" data_size="4" data_precision="1" />
        <column col_ref="inverter_id" dict_ref="inverter_id" data_type="J" unit="" data_size="4" data_precision="1" /> <column col_ref="serialnumber" dict_ref="serialnumber" data_type="C" unit="" data_size="32" data_precision="1" />
         <column col_ref="iv_characteristic" dict_ref="iv_characteristic" data_type="S" unit="" data_size="2048"
            data_precision="1" />
         <column col_ref="voc_1" dict_ref="voc_1" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="voc_2" dict_ref="voc_2" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="voc_3" dict_ref="voc_3" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="voc_4" dict_ref="voc_4" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="voc_5" dict_ref="voc_5" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="voc_6" dict_ref="voc_6" data_type="R" unit="v" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="isc_1" dict_ref="isc_1" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
         <column col_ref="isc_2" dict_ref="isc_2" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
         <column col_ref="isc_3" dict_ref="isc_3" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
         <column col_ref="isc_4" dict_ref="isc_4" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
<column col_ref="isc_5" dict_ref="isc_5" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
<column col_ref="isc_5" dict_ref="isc_5" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
</column col_ref="isc_5" data_prec
         <column col_ref="isc_6" dict_ref="isc_6" data_type="R" unit="A" data_size="2" data_precision="0.001" />
         <column col_ref="vmpp_1" dict_ref="vmpp_1" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="vmpp_2" dict_ref="vmpp_2" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="vmpp_3" dict_ref="vmpp_3" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col_ref="vmpp_4" dict_ref="vmpp_4" data_type="R" unit="V" data_size="2" data_precision="0.01" />
         <column col ref="vmpp 5" dict ref="vmpp 5" data type="R" unit="V" data size="2" data precision="0.01" />
```

Illustration 9-2 Declaration of the XML file



10 Disposal

Disposal of waste by users in private households within the European Union:



This symbol attached to a product or packaging indicates that this product must not be disposed together with the normal domestic waste. Instead it is your responsibility to dispose of such waste by handing it over to a designated collection point for recycling of electric or electronic devices. Separate collection and recycling helps to conserve natural resources and to ensure that the product is disposed in accordance with the protection of health and ecosystems.

For further information where such waste may be delivered for recycling please consult your municipal administration, your local waste disposal company or the retailer where you purchased this product.



11 Technical Data

Processor:	800Mhz Vortex-86DX
Central memory:	256MB RAM
Internal memory:	2GB SSD
Operating system:	Linux
COM Ports:	1x RS485 or RS232 via plug connector
	1x RS485 via RJ45 dual socket
Interfaces:	LAN (Ethernet 10/100 MBit full-duplex)
	Modem- or GSM-connection SUB-D9
	EasyLan
USB:	2x (on the backside)
Signals:	Internal loudspeaker LED for event display on the top side (6x green, 2x red) 3 LED on the plug connector
Data storage:	1 GB Compact Flash® memory card (expandable up to 4 GB)
Casing:	Two-piece, metal casing without fan for top hat rail mounting (IP20)
Weight:	800 g net (without accessories and external power supply)
Ambient humidity:	Indoor areas / within switching cabinets
Operating tempera- ture:	Minimal -10 to 50°C



117 User Manual

Dimensions:	175 mm x 155 m x 45 mm (B x H x T) including
	backside top hat rail adapter and plug connector
Alarm contact:	Isolated output max 48VDC
Power supply:	External power plug: 100 -240 VAC, 50 – 60 Hz, 12 24 VDC, 0,5 A (power 6 W)
Power consumption:	3W



12 Description of Symbols

Move the computer mouse over the single symbols and the descriptions of the symbols via so called "Tooltips" show up.

12.1 General

Symbol	Description
0	New line
0	Delete line
8	Edit settings
٢	Scroll forward
٥	Scroll backwards
٢	Deactivate

12.2 Network Search

Colour	Description
Red	No inverter / sensor module detected.
Yellow	Active network search running.
Green	Network search successfully terminated



12.3 Status Display

Symbol	Description
	Green: plant is running regularly
•	Yellow: One inverter presents an error (no communication, no feed-in).
۲	Red: At least 30% of all inverters present errors (no communica- tion, no feed-in)

12.4 Messaging

Symbol	Description
Θ	Alarm activated
۲	Alarm deactivated
8	Edit settings

12.5 Solar Feed-in Tariff

Symbol	Description
+	Add tariff
-	Delete tariff

12.6 Plant Status

Symbol	Description
•	Insufficient performance
•	Moderate performance



Symbol	Description
	Good performance
•	Notification from inverter available
•	Inverter offline



13 Description of Conformity





1.0



RoHS-Konformitätserklärung

Der Herstel er

Papendorf Software Engineering GmbH Robert-Bosch-Str. 10 D-71116 Gärtringen

erklärt hiermit, dass alle verwendeten Bauteile der Baureihe

SOL.Connect Center 3

die Anforderungen der RoHS Richtlin e 2002/96/EG (27.01.2003) ab dom

01.08.2008

entsprechen und keine der verbotenen Substanzen in einer Konzentration oberhalb der Grenzwerte enthäll. Die RoHS Richtlinien legt Bedingungen zur Beschränkungen bestimmter gefährlicher Stoffe in Elektro- und Elektronikgeräten fest.

Gärtringen, im April 2012

Pet lo-

Peter Papendorf, Geschäftsführer



14 Illustration Index

Illustration 3-1 System Overview Standard Version
Illustration 4-2 SOL.Connect Center Back Side19
Illustration 5-4 Connecting Display28
Illustration 5-5 Connect Alarm Contact
Illustration 5-6 Connection Power Supply
Illustration 5-7 First Steps – Searching Inverters
Illustration 5-8 First Steps – Searching Sensors
Illustration 6-1 Mounting Adapter33
Illustration 7-2 Monitoring Protocol
Illustration 7-3 Navigation Analysis
Illustration 7-4 Event Protocol in Analysis
Illustration 7-3 Welcome Screen 40
Illustration 7-6 Plant Status - Inverter 42
Illustration 7-27 Plant Status – Sensor Details
Illustration 7-7 Overview Monitoring45
Illustration 7-8 Active Alarm
Illustration 7-9 Overview Analysis
Illustration 7-10 Overview System Information
Illustration 7-11 Configuration Network52
Illustration 7-12 Configuration Modem54
Illustration 7-13 Customize the Welcome Screen57
Illustration 7-1 Configuration – System Time



Illustration 7-14 Configuration – Time Zone6	0
Illustration 7-15 Configuration – Manual Setting of System Time	1
Illustration 7-16 Configuration System Language6	3
Illustration 7-17 Configuration – In- and Outputs	4
Illustration 7-18 Configuration Input6	5
Illustration 7-19 Configuration Output6	6
Illustration 7-20 Configuration - Restart6	7
Illustration 7-21 Configuration – Software Update	8
Illustration 7-22 Configuration – Factory Settings7	0
Illustration 7-23 Configuration E-Mail Services7	1
Illustration 7-24 Message Recipient – Alarm Contact7	4
Illustration 7-25 Message Recipient - E-mail7	5
Illustration 7-26 Message Recipient - FTP-Upload7	6
Illustration 7-27 FTP-Upload – Sensor Data7	7
Illustration 7-28 Configuration Display8	1
Illustration 7-29 Solar Plant8	3
Illustration 7-30 Search for Inverters8	6
Illustration 7-31 Configuration Inverter8	7
Illustration 7-34 Administering Inverter Groups8	9
Illustration 7-32 Searching Sensor Modules9	1
Illustration 7-33 Own Model of Feed-in Tariff9	2
Illustration 7-35 Configuration Performance Management	4
Illustration 7-36 Public Access9	6
Illustration 7-37 Passwords	7



125 User Manual

Illustration 7-38 Overview Download	. 98
Illustration 7-39 Download Form	100
Illustration 7-40 Documentation Download	101
Illustration 7-41 Messaging for News Recipients	103
Illustration 7-43 E-Mail Distribution of Analysis	107

